ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 11, 2015
1: 06 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Representative Charisse Ml lett
Representative Matt C aman
Representati ve Neal Foster
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 75
"An  Act relating to the regulation of marijuana by
muni ci palities; and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :

ALASKA COW SSI ON ON JUDI CI AL CONDUCT

George R Boatright
- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED -

BILL: HB 75

SHORT TI TLE: MUNI REGULATI ON OF MARI JUANA; ADV. BOARDS
SPONSOR(s): COMMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

01/ 23/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 23/ 15 (H CRA, JUD

02/ 21/ 15 (H) CRA AT 10:00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 21/ 15 (H -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

02/ 24/ 15 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 11, 2015



02/ 24/ 15 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 24/ 15 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 03/ 15 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

03/ 03/ 15 (H) Moved CSHB 75(CRA) Qut of Committee
03/ 03/ 15 (H M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 05/ 15 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

03/ 05/ 15 (H) Moved CSHB 75(CRA) Qut of Committee
03/ 05/ 15 (H M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 06/ 15 (H CRA RPT CS(CRA) NT 3DP 3NR

03/ 06/ 15 (H) DP: NAGEAK, SEATON, TILTON

03/ 06/ 15 (H NR. DRUMMOND, REI NBOLD, HUGHES

03/ 11/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

GEORGE BOATRI GHT

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As appointee to the position of Alaska's
Comm ssion on Judicial Conduct, discussed his qualifications and
answer ed questi ons.

CHARLES MCKEE

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the confirmation hearing of George
Boatright testified regarding the "Gath Bonded Conmm ssion”

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY TI LTON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented CSHB 75 on behalf of the House
Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee, of which she
chairs.

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff

Representative Cathy Tilton

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified regarding CSHB HB 75 on behal f of
the House Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee,
sponsor by request, chaired by Representative Tilton.

SCOTT BLOOM City Attorney

Cty of Kenai

Kenai, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of CSHB 75.

LUKE HOPKI NS, Mayor

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 11, 2015



Fai rbanks North Star Borough

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of CSHB 75 offered
testi mony and answered questions.

TODD SHERWOOD, Assi stant Munici pal Attorney

Anchor age Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of CSHB 75 offered
testi mony and answered questi ons.

RENE BROKER, Borough Attorney

Fai rbanks North Star Borough

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of CSHB 75 answered
guesti ons.

CATHY WASSERVAN

Al aska Muni ci pal League

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of CSHB 75 offered
testi nony and answered questions.

BRUCE SCHULTE

Coalition for Responsible Cannabis Legi sl ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on CSHB 75 offered
testi nony and answered questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 06: 19 PM

CHAIR GABRI ELLE LEDOUX <called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:06 p.m Representatives Keller,
Lynn, Mllett, Caman, and LeDoux were present at the call to
order. Representatives Guenberg and Foster arrived as the
nmeeti ng was in progress.

ACONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG( S): ALASKA COVM SSI ON ON JUDI Cl AL CONDUCT
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG&( S)
ALASKA COVM SSI ON ON JUDI CI AL CONDUCT

1: 06: 41 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX brought before the conmttee the appointnment of
George R Boatright to a position on the Commttee on Judicia

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 11, 2015



Conduct . [ Packets contain biographical information on the
appoi nt ee. ]

CHAI R LEDOUX advised the conmttee that it would be hearing the
qualifications of this individual today and recomrending that
his nanme be referred to the Joint House and Senate for
consideration. Chair LeDoux rem nded the comrmittee that its job
is only to review the history and qualifications of these nen

She stated that there will be no vote for or against their
confirmations. Conmittee nenbers should feel free to ask
questions, but to bear in mnd that the commttee is not voting
on qualifications, nerely review ng them she highlighted.

1: 07: 32 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX asked M. Boatright if there was anything he would
i ke to point out.

1: 08: 07 PM

CECRCE BOATRIGHT said that primarily his experience in |aw
enforcement with the Al aska Court Systemis nost rel evant.

1: 08: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked M. Boatright why he is willing to
serve on the conm ssion.

MR. BOATRIGHT noted that he has been retired for alnost three
years and is |looking for sonething to do as he has always been
i nvolved in public service.

1: 09: 35 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX remarked that in his professional career in |aw
enforcement had he ever had the opportunity to appear before
many of the judges.

MR. BOATRI GHT opined that nost of the judges he has dealt wth
have long since retired or noved on to other things. He said
there are a few judges left that he is famliar with from his
time as Chief of Police in Palnmer, but he has not had any
contact or interaction with the current serving judges.

CHAI R LEDOQUX opened public testinony.

1:11: 04 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 11, 2015



CHARLES MCKEE advi sed he told the [Al aska Conm ssion on Judici al
Conduct [when the vacancy arose] nust have an "Cath Bonded
Commi ssion" on file with the clerk of court as after 30 days
they are an inposter. He cited the 1863 Act of Congress signed
by Lincol n.

CHAI R LEDOUX closed public testinony after ascertaining no one
further wished to testify.

1: 13: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to forward the name of George R
Boatright to the joint session of the House and Senate for
confirmation. There being no objection, the confirmation of
George R Boatright was advanced from the House Judiciary
Standi ng Comm ttee.

1: 13: 29 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from1l:13 to 1:15 P. M

HB  75- MUNI REGULATI ON OF MARI JUANA; ADV. BQARDS

1:15: 24 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the |ast order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 75, "An Act relating to the regulation of
marijuana by nmunicipalities; and providing for an effective
date."

1: 15: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY TILTON, Alaska State Legislature, said HB
75 is essentially a collaborative effort between the House
Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee, Al aska
Muni ci pal Leagues, Alaska Muinicipal Attorneys Association,
community governing stakeholders, and community mnenbers. She
noted that when the marijuana initiative was passed, comrmunities
| ooked to the legislature for guidance in whether to opt in or
opt out. During the hearings, rather than telling the
communities what to do, she listened to what communities need
fromthe |egislature.

1:17: 02 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 11, 2015



HEATH HI LYARD, Staff, Representative Cathy Tilton, Alaska State
Legislature, referred to the "S" version and stated it follows
the identical definition provided in the initiative |anguage,
with the exception of the renoval of the reference "salt." To
the extent possible, the drafter aligned definitions in specific
provi sions that al so exist in other marijuana related
| egi sl ation. He pointed out that Sec. 1 pertains to a
definition in Title 11 of the Alaska Crimnal Statute. In the
course of drafting, they created a structure whereby if HB 75
was the only related piece of marijuana |egislation that passed
this vyear the appropriate statutory references would be
provi ded. He related that other pieces conpletely renove the
definition under Title 11 of the Alaska Crimnal Statute. He
further related that the functional effect is the sane as the
goal is to provide a standard definition through statute for
mari j uana.

1:19: 56 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX questioned that other than taking the [|anguage
"salt" out, was anything done with the comma.

1:20: 07 PM

MR. HILYARD responded that his research did not direct the
drafters to do or not do anything with the comm. He referred
to Sec. 2 [AS 17.38.020(2)], page 2, lines 16-18, which read:

(2) ... were grown, except that not nore than 12
marijuana plants, wth six or fewer being nmature,
flowering plants, nay be present in a single residence
where two or nore persons 21 years of age or ol der
reside;

MR. HILYARD continued that nunicipalities provided a specific
nunber of plant limts per household. He advised that this bil

is largely a work product of nunicipal attorneys and they asked
that the legislature provide a bright line regarding the tota
limt on a household. In attenpting to nake a legitimte
justification for 12 plants, they reviewed federal |aws as they
pertain to al cohol and particularly the hone brew ng of al cohol.

1:22:39 PM
CHAI R LEDOUX interjected that because she has concerns that the

[ number of plants for personal use] mght contravene the terns
of the initiative, she asked Legislative Legal and Research

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 11, 2015



Services for an opinion, which the conmittee has not yet been
provi ded.

She advised that her question was whether or not this
contravenes the initiative, and whether it contravenes the
initiative in such a manner that would be inappropriate,
unconstitutional, or illegal, wunder Alaska law relating to
initiatives.

1: 23: 21 PM

MR. HILYARD noted that there were several nunicipal attorneys on
line to testify, and sonme specifically like 12 as a nunber, and
sone sinply say they do not care what the nunber is so long as
there is a definitive nunber per househol d. He described the
| egislation as a work product designed to be responsive to the
needs of municipal communities.

The House Conmmunity and Regional Affairs Standing Conmittee is
the sponsor of this bill and, he related, that the comittee
would be satisfied with whatever nunber the House Judiciary
Standing Commttee offers.

1:24: 00 PM
CHAI R LEDOUX opined that one of the progeny of the Ravin v.

State of Al aska, 537 P.2d 494 (Al aska 1975), decision discusses
how many plants a person can possess.

MR. HI LYARD advised that Ravin pertains only to the privacy
i ssue and under Noy v. State of Alaska, No. A-8327, August 29
2003, the Alaska Court of Appeals defined four ounces or |ess
for personal possession. H's research did not reveal case |aw
directed at 12 plants versus 24 plants.

1: 27: 32 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX asked M. Hilyard the definition of a marijuana
cl ub.

MR. H LYARD pointed to [Sec. 21. AS 17.38.900(16)], page 11,
lines 3-5, and said that the definition of a marijuana reads as
fol | ows:

(16) "marijuana club" means an entity registered to
all ow consunption of marijuana by paying nenbers of

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 11, 2015



the club on the registered prem ses and whose nenbers
are 21 years of age or ol der;

MR. HI LYARD advised there has been discussion about providing
addi tional sideboards in which the input of the House Judiciary
Standing Commttee would be very valuable. He offered that this
is an initial first blush based on the discussions of the House
Communi ty and Regi onal Affairs Standing Conmittee.

1: 28: 18 PM

CHAI R LEDQUX questioned whether a marijuana club could have
enpl oyees.

MR. H LYARD responded there has been discussion relating to
bottle clubs versus private club as it pertains to provisions in
Title 4, but the commttee did not weigh in on that issue.

CHAI R LEDOUX stated that nmany nunicipalities ban the consunption
of the snoking of <cigarettes and that there 1is currently
| egislation concerning a statew de ban. She wondered how
marijuana |legislation wll gel with anti-snoking |egislation.

MR. HI LYARD stated that as this legislation was being drafted it
did not have the luxury of the presunption of other pieces of

| egi sl ation passing. He noted there would have to be a
reviser's bill to address any potential differences between what
passes. He pointed out that Sec. 8, addresses an unintended

omssion in the initiative regarding the local option provision
as AS 17.38 made no provision for local option elections for
established villages. In going through the drafting process,
they put in sideboards regarding the process in which an
established village can hold a local option election, and how
the perineters of an established village are determ ned.

1: 30: 34 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX asked if this would basically work as it does for
the local option with respect to al cohol.

MR. H LYARD answered in the affirmative, and stated with the
exception t hat Ravi n provi des protection for per sonal
consunption of marijuana and not for alcohol. The |ocal option
election in this circunstance would pertain only to the banning
of comrercial [marijuana]l activities within the perineters of an
established vill age.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 11, 2015



1: 31: 02 PM

MR. H LYARD referred to Sec. 9, [AS 17.38.110(b), page 5, lines
26-31 and Page 6, lines 1-2, and stated that at the express
request of nunicipalities, the House Comunity and Regional
Affairs Standing Commttee allowed nunicipalities to establish
civil and crimnal penalties for time, place, and rmanner
violations by commercial marijuana establishnents. He pointed
out it was not originally included in the initiative, and
Legislative Legal and Research Services advised it was not

specifically prohibited in the initiative |anguage. He opi ned
that Title 29 provisions would allow the nunicipalities to do
that even though it was not expressly defined. The conmitt ee,

at the express request of the nunicipalities, provided that they
have crimnal authority for tine, place, and nmanner, violations
for comercial establishnments. He referred to Sec. 16, [AS
17.38.110], page 7, lines [15]-22, which stipulate that any of
the powers authorized to the boroughs is on a non-areaw de
basi s. Essentially, he noted, in the case of the Fairbanks
North Star Borough, the borough my adopt prohibitions or
regul ations within the borough boundaries. Due to the fact they
are non-areaw de, any prohibition or ordinance on the borough-
wi de level would not apply to cities within its boundaries. He
said that was at the request of <cities like the Cty of
Fairbanks and the Cty of Wasilla that are first-case cities
wi t hin second cl ass boroughs.

1: 32: 37 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX surm sed that the boroughs, many of which do not
have area-wi de powers, cannot «currently adopt anti-snoking
regul ati ons. She questioned whether they would be able to under
this | egi sl ation adopt regul ati ons vis-a-vis marij uana
est abl i shment s.

MR. HI LYARD used the exanple of the Fairbanks North Star Borough
and remarked that it could adopt borough ordi nances pertaining
to borough land outside of the boundaries of first class cities
like North Pole and Fairbanks, which lay within the boundaries
of the Fairbanks North Star Borough.

CHAI R LEDOUX questioned that even if one of their powers is not
health or public safety, as many boroughs do not have that
power .

MR. HI LYARD opined that they still have zoning and planning
authority and that could fall under that circunstance. He said

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 11, 2015



the intent of the policy call of the House Comunity and
Regi onal Affairs Standing Conmttee, with regard to stipulating
non-areawi de, is that a borough could not supersede a city
within its boundaries.

1: 33: 49 PM

MR. HI LYARD pointed to Sec. 17, [AS 17.38.200 - AS 17.38.260],
page 7, lines 26-31 through page 10, lines 1-[11] and stated it
sets forth the proper process by which an established village
can have a local option election to prohibit a comercial

marijuana operation within its boundaries. He advised it is
virtually identical |anguage to Title 4, for the purpose of
comercial marijuana establishnents. Sec. 19, [17.38.900(9)],
page 10, lines [16-19], adds to the definition of marijuana club
to marijuana establishnent, he explained. Sec. 20, [AS
17.38.900(6)], page 10, lines [20-28], revises the definition of
marijuana to be consistent with Sec. 1, of the bill. He noted

that essentially the practical effect is that the commttee
prefers a singular definition of marijuana throughout statute
for rmunicipalities to adopt ordinances. Sec. 21, [ AS
17.38.900], page 10, lines [29-31] through page 11, lines [1-12]
offers the express definition for an established village,

marijuana club, public place, and residence. The public place
definition follows AS 11.81.900, he noted. "Sec. 22 renoves
| ocal governnent from the definition section found in AS 17.38.
let nme just refresh nyself why that was the case ... there
was ... that's kind of a conform ng anmendnent and quite honestly
| don't renenber exactly why |ocal government was renoved but
there was a drafting reason.” Sec. 23 provides for the
effective date of the bill, he expl ained.
1: 35:49 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX asked that if public place doesn't include a
marijuana club then under what opuses would the | ocal governnent
ban the marijuana club

MR. HLYARD explained that it would be determined as a
comercial marijuana establishment. The initiative provides for
various types of comerci al establishments regarding the
cultivator, transporter, wholesaler, or retailer, and this
provision adds marijuana club to the |list of comercia
est abl i shment s.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 11, 2015



CHAI R LEDOUX offered a scenario of a person formng a marijuana

club like a book club, or a non-profit, and asked how that would
wor K.

MR. HI LYARD answered that he did not have a response as perhaps
the House Community and Regional Affairs Standing Committee
definition of marijuana club is not as sufficient as necessary.
He reiterated it was a first blush based on requests from
muni cipalities to offer them a definition so they could
determ ne, by local ordinance, whether they would allow or
di sal |l ow marijuana clubs within their boundari es.

1: 37: 07 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX referred to [Sec. 1, AS 11.71.900] page 2, lines 2-
4, which read:

(14) ... , or the weight of any other ingredient
conbined with nmarijuana to prepare topical or oral
adm ni strations, food, drink, or other products;

CHAI R LEDOUX asked whether that |anguage differed from current
I aw.

MR. HI LYARD opined that as it is referring to AS 11.[71.900], of
the Alaska Crimnal Statute, and the |anguage needed to be

included to conform to the initiative |anguage. He said the
definition nust be reviewed in the event a substantive crin na
regul atory bill package is not adopted by this |egislature.
1:38: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER referred to Sec. 14, [AS 17.38.110(i)],
page 7, lines 5-9, which read:

(1) A registration issued by a nunicipality [LOCAL
GOVERNMENT] in accordance with (f)[OF TH S SECTION] or
(g) of this section shall have the sane force and
effect as a registration issued by the board in
accordance wth AS 17.38.100. The holder of the
[ SHALL] registration is [SHALL] not [BE] subject to
regul ation or enforcenment by the board during the term
of that registration

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER and asked M. Hilyard to explain the
| anguage.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 11, 2015



MR. HILYARD answered that the House Conmmunity and Regional
Affairs Standing Committee anended existing statute for the
initiative | anguage  whi ch changed | ocal gover niment to
muni ci pality. He said he could not speak to |anguage from the
initiative.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked for verification that the initiative
made the deletions on |ine 8.

MR. H LYARD said that Sec. 14 includes the deletion of |ocal
government with the inclusion of nunicipality, which is

clarifying and wusing the standard. In going forward, he
of fered, when |ooking at the holder of the registration "is not
subject"” is a granmatical change based on Legislative Legal and

Research Servi ces. He posited there was no policy direction by
the commttee or any nenbers of the nunicipal attorneys working
with themas it was drafting | anguage.

1: 40: 21 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX opined that the way the initiative works is that if
the board does not act on an application for registration, then
the nmunicipality can act. She said the |anguage is changing
fromlocal governnent action to nunicipality action

MR. HILYARD said the initiative |language would read "The hol der
of such registration shall not be subject to regulation or
enforcenent by the board during the term of that registration.”
He related that the new revision reads "The holder of the
registration is not subject to a regulation or enforcenent by
the board during the term of that registration.” He suggested
asking the drafter, Hlary Mrtin, but remarked it was
essentially a grammatical issue by the Legislative Legal and
Research Servi ce. He reiterated there was no policy direction
by the House Community and Regional Affairs Standing Conmmttee
or any requests fromnunicipalities for the | anguage change.

1:41: 27 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER pointed to [Sec. 2, AS 17.38.020], page 2,
lines 6-7, and referred to the wording "NOTWTHSTANDI NG any

ot her provision of law ..." and said it was taken out of HB 79.

CHAIR LEDOUX offered that one of the work drafts took the
| anguage out, but it is still being considered.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 11, 2015



1:41:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked for clarification of [Sec. 5, AS
17.38.100(c)] page 3, lines 13-14, which read:

(c) Wthin 10 days after receipt of [UPON RECEI VI NG
an application or renewal application for a marijuana
establishment, the board shall notify the nunicipality
of the board's receipt of the application and
[ 1 MVEDI ATELY] forward a copy of each application and
half of the registration application fee to the |oca
regulatory authority for the nmunicipality [LOCAL
GOVERNMENT] in which the applicant desires to operate
the marijuana establishnent, unless the nunicipality
[ LOCAL  GOVERNMENT] has not designated a | ocal
regul atory authority under [LOCAL GOVERNVENT] has not
desi gnat ed a | ocal regul atory authority under
[ PURSUANT TQQ AS 17.38.110(c).

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER questioned whether the I|anguage is a
policy decision for the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

MR. HI LYARD opined that there has been debate as to revenue
sharing for the license registration fees and based upon his
conversations wth nunicipal attorneys, nmunicipalities would
like the 50-50 split. He advised there are people on line who
coul d speak to that issue.

1:43: 00 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX pointed to a legal opinion in each packet
suggesting it is not legally appropriate.

MR. HI LYARD remarked that he does not recall the above-nentioned
opinion as this issue was not discussed in the House Conmunity
and Regional Affairs Standing Conmittee.

CHAIR LEDOUX said she is referring to the legal opinion of
2/27/15, and noted that page 3 refers to dedication of funds
wi t hout appropriation.

MR. HI LYARD said that he does not have an opi nion.

CHAIR LEDOUX commented that the commttee would consider the
i ssue during the next hearing.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 11, 2015



1:44:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER qui ered whether this requires the board to
notify the municipality when it receives an application, and
asked if there is a fiscal note.

MR. HI LYARD advised there is a singular fiscal note from the
Department of Commerce, Community, and Econom c Devel opnent

(DCCED) wunder the Dyvision of Al cohol, Dvision of Economc
Devel opnent, within the Al coholic Beverage Control Board (ABC
Board) that is a zero fiscal note. The | anguage and the

provi sion Representative Keller spoke to was essentially taken
directly from Title 4. He advised that the House Community and
Regional Affairs Standing Committee wanted to apply provisions
with regard to notification and/or protest that exists for
al cohol licensures to nunicipalities to commercial marijuana.

CHAI R LEDOQUX opened public testinony.

1:46: 53 PM

SCOTT BLOOM Cty Attorney, Cty of Kenai , said that
Representative Tilton and M. Hlyard have worked closely wth

many |ocal nunicipal representatives regarding their concerns
about inplenentation of the initiative and opined that the

current CSHB 75 fairly represents those efforts. Options for
| ocal control and clarity in enforceable rules will benefit the
Cty of Kenai and other nmunicipalities as well. The bill

preserves |ocal options and provides clarity for the public and
agency's charged with enforcenment. He said he supports a bright
line rule for a particular nunber of plants per household as it

provides clarity to all potential interested parties. He
related that he does not advocate for any particular limt as
long as there is a specific nunber. He opined that w thout the

anendnent in this regard the initiative |anguage would either
result in scant enforcement or constant litigation. He further
opined that the conmittee's support for CSHB 75 will help to
provi de guidance and uniformty as municipalities nove forward
in this process.

1: 48: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested that M. Bloom and others
remai n avail abl e.

MR. BLOOM stated he woul d be avail abl e.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 11, 2015



CHAI R LEDOUX asked why would it be difficult for a nunicipality
when there are four people in a household with 24 plants, why
isn't that as bright of a line as saying 12 or 18 plants. She
opi ned that when there are four adults it would be relatively
easy to figure out how many plants they are entitled to.

MR. BLOOM responded that there is difficulty in determning how
many people actually live at that residence and used the exanple
of police responding to a donmestic violence call and the police
find 36 plants, except the 2 people at the residence say that 6
adults live in the house. He described a person having |arge
guantities of marijuana in a college-like setting where there
are numerous adults living together and stated it can lead to
ot her probl ens.

CHAIR LEDOUX related that is a different scenario than a bright
line just for purposes of making things easier to figure out.

MR. BLOOM agreed that it is a little different in that when the
muni ci pality knows a household can only have 12-24 plants and
| aw enforcenent shows up at a residence for whatever reason and
there are a given nunber of plants within the limt, that is the
end of the inquiry. O herwise, he said, it is a nore
conplicated process in determining who lives there and who
possesses the plants.

1: 50: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the focus in the discussion
was on page 2, |ines 16-18.

CHAI R LEDOUX advised that M. Bloom was testifying on the bil
before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG offered a scenario of having a 4-plex
and a backyard or a greenhouse, how would |aw enforcenent know
to which residence the plants bel onged.

MR. BLOOM said he does know that they could, and opined that the
police department would have to investigate in that regard.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed that the commttee received a
three page |egal neno, dated 2/27/15, from Em |y Nauman, which
di scussed equal protection on the first page. He questioned
whet her M. Bloom had reviewed it.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 15- March 11, 2015



MR. BLOOM said he does not know whether he has read that
particul ar neno, however, he has |ooked into sone case |aw and
anal yzed under Alaska law nore as a privacy type interest. He
offered that the Al aska Supreme Court has |ooked at whether a
regulation has a close and substantial relationship to a
legitimate governnment interest. He stated that the Al aska court
previously decided that the state has a substantial interest in
regulating the use of marijuana in driving, use by children,
regulating in public places, and regulating the buying and
selling of marijuana. He opined that when there is a l|ot of
marijuana in one place it triggers that interest in the buying
and selling of marijuana. He further opined that there is an
interest in reasonable enforcenent of regulations as wthout
nmore clarity on this subject it wll be difficult for
enforcenment because it is too vague for law enforcenent to
det erm ne whose marijuana plants are whose.

1:53: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that his questions wll relate to
the practical problens of enforcing this |law and constitutiona
I Ssues. He posed a question of how |aw enforcenment and
prosecutors are going to do this.

CHAIR LEDOUX said there are three people listed to testify,
Scott Bloom Luke Hopkins, Fairbanks Mayor, Todd Sherwood,
Anchorage Municipal Attorney, and Bruce Schulte, available to
answer questions. She noted that Cathy Wisserman is in the
audi ence fromthe Al aska Municipal League to testify.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surnised that |aw enforcenent was not
avai lable to testify.

1: 56: 02 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX referred Representative Gruenberg to the initiative
and pointed out that under AS 17.38.030(1)(A) which read:

(A) marijuana plants shall be cultivated in a l|location
where the plants are not subject to public view
wi thout the wuse of binoculars, aircraft, or other
optical aides.

CHAIR LEDOUX said it my answer Representative Guenberg's
gquestion regardi ng a greenhouse in the backyard.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 11, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG offered that he would change his
guestion to a conmon basenent.

1:57:10 PM

LUKE HOPKINS, Mayor, Fairbanks North Star Borough, asked that
Representative Guenberg restate his question for the borough
attor ney.

1:57: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned how will growing marijuana
be legally enforced in a situation where narijuana is being
grown in an area in a nulti-famly residence accessible to a
nunber of people. He offered that it could be a greenhouse that
a person cannot see what is growing inside, in a basenent, or
hal | way.

1: 58: 35 PM

TODD  SHERWOOD, Assi st ant Muni ci pal At t or ney, Anchor age
Department of Law, responded to Representative G uenberg that as
an inportant aside on the equal protection issue, advised he
spoke with an attorney in the City of Denver's |aw departnment on
this issue. He explained that the Colorado initiative is part
of their constitution, unlike Al aska which has the identical

| anguage regarding the six plant limt. He advised that the
Cty of Denver, prior to legalization January 1, 2014,
established a 12 plant per dwelling unit limt. He expressed

that Denver has had no equal protection challenges and in fact
t here have been no chall enges of any kind on the 12 plant limt.
In some manner this nay speak to whether it would be a credible
chal | enge, he opined. He noted that on one hand, he does not
know i f Col orado has the sanme privacy clause in its constitution
as Al aska. On the other hand the Colorado anendnent that
| egal i zed recreational marijuana is part of its constitution, he
further noted. He offered that the question illustrates the
inmportance of a bright line rule in Alaska as to whether
marijuana is grown in a basenent or backyard. The 12 plants are
in essence owned in comobn and however many adults are living
there are arguably in possession of those plants, he renmarked.
He said that within the Anchorage Muinicipal Code the term single
residence is not used for a separate residence for one household
as it is called a dwelling or dwelling unit, and the code
defi nes household. He opined that in order to address the issue
raised, municipalities my need to further define what the 12
plant limt applies to in terns of a greenhouse. He noted that

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 11, 2015



the definition is fine when it applies to inside the building.
For Anchorage, he said, it further underlines the need to |eave
maxi mum flexibility to the nunicipalities in noving forward.

2: 02: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG  poi nt ed to exi sting I aw, AS
11.81.900[ (52)], which read:

(52) "public place" nmeans a place to which the public
or a substantial group of persons has access and
i ncl udes hi ghways, transportation facilities, schools,
pl aces of anusenent or business, parks, playgrounds,
prisons, and hallways, |obbies, and other portions of
apartnent houses and hotels not constituting roons or
apartnents designed for actual residence;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that the statute noved the
commttee closer to specific |anguage for CSHB 75. He assuned
that definition would apply to this bill in Title 17. He
menti oned that Chair LeDoux nodded in agreenent.

2:04: 05 PM

RENE BROKER, Borough Attorney, Fairbanks North Star Borough,
added that the Fairbanks North Star Borough also uses the term
dwel l'ing units.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that dwelling units may be better
as it is not as narrow

2:05:46 PM

MR, HOPKINS referred to [Sec. 2, AS 17.38.020] page 2, lines 16-
19, which read:

(1) possessing, using, displaying, purchasing, or
transporting narijuana accessories or one ounce or
| ess of marijuana;

(2) possessing, grow ng, processing, or transporting
not [NO nore than six marijuana plants, with three or
fewer being mature, flowering plants,

MR. HOPKINS posited that six plants per dwelling unit is his
hope, and harvesting three adult fully flowering plants for a
househol d. He questioned whether nore than six flowering plants
are necessary in a dwelling unit to satisfy personal use of

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 11, 2015



adults over 21 years of age. He opined that adults in Fairbanks
ask him why nore than six plants [per household] are necessary
to suffice personal use. He opined there is a slogan to
regulate nmarijuana like alcohol, but in his mnd nmarijuana is
different than al cohol and he asked that the commttee consider
that issue. Another point, he said, is |anguage that a "second
cl ass borough may exercise by ordinance on a non-areaw de or
areawi de basis the power to regulate, prohibit, and provide for
civil penalties for a public ... for the public use of
mari j uana. " He noted that this |language was forwarded to
Representative Tilton's staff, Heath Hilyard. He referred to
t he above | anguage and expl ained that second cl ass boroughs have
to adopt different degrees of the Departnment of Health & Socia
Service (DHSS) powers. He opined it would be best for the
Fai rbanks North Star Borough and other second class boroughs
that the law allow the ability to adopt civil fines for public
use of marijuana by ordi nance. He said his plan was for a $100
fine for public consunption of marijuana and had to pull it back
because it currently doesn't fit in the Fairbanks North Star
Borough. Should the [fine] be by law it could be brought before
the Fairbanks North Star Borough Assenbly and adopt an
or di nance. He used the exanple of it being placed under AS 29
or AS 17.38 as it wuwuld be nost beneficial to loca
muni ci palities and offers them the ability to do as the |oca
| egislative body finds appropriate for its communities. He
noted that the aspect of an areawi de borough has incorporated
cities has a nore restrictive code on marijuana that it be
considered on an areaw de basis so the borough does not have to

"spray paint lines" in the snow where the city and borough
[imts are.
2:10: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the issue is conplicated and hoped
the municipalities wuld be of a like mnd and asked for
| anguage so the conmmttee coul d understand their concerns.

CHAI R LEDOUX said the sponsor does have other |anguage and the
commttee will be working with that.

2:11:46 PM
CHAIR LEDOUX asked in relating to the wording of CSHB 75,

wi t hout new | anguage, whether the boroughs have areaw de powers
to enforce the DHSS | aws.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 11, 2015



MR. HOPKINS responded that it depends upon the powers that have
been given to second cl ass boroughs.

2:12:42 PM

M5. BROKER expl ai ned that second cl ass boroughs do not have that
power unless it has separately acquired it through voter
approval . She noted that the Fairbanks North Star Borough does
not currently possess that power because it has not been
provi ded by city |law or voter approval.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked which boroughs have the authority and which
bor oughs do not.

M5. BROKER answered that she would not |ike to speak wth
authority, but does not believe that any second class borough
has that authority.

2:13:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG rai sed the issue of whether any state
| aws shoul d be changed to provide flexibility.

2:14:15 PM

CATHY WASSERMAN, Al aska Muinicipal League, said the purpose of
the Alaska Miunicipal League (AM.) is to attenpt to put

municipalities on the sane page. The bill expresses what
muni ci palities need to ascertain its residents are safe and that
muni ci palities abide by the provision of the initiative. She

noted there are disagreenents between areawi de and non-areaw de
and AML does not take a position on that issue. She sai d that
AML appreciates CSHB 75 as it offers the local option to take

care of issues on the |[ocal | evel . She opined that
muni cipalities will feel the ramfications first whether or not
there are good or bad things that happen and they need to be
able to be flexible. She further opined her hope that the

muni ci palities and | egislature |ook at the issue in a couple of
years because she is confident there are issues that won't work
wel |l and noted that the AML is in favor of CSHB 75.

2:18:43 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX surmsed that the 12 plant limt is a conpromse
that the municipalities have nore or |ess agreed upon.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 11, 2015



M5. WASSERMAN opined that the 12 plant limt is a placehol der
and no one is nmarried to 12. It does help keeps things from
being grey for |aw enforcenent when determ ning who lives in the
residence, are they on the North Slope, in the mlitary, or the
National Guard and gone for a nmonth and |aw enforcenent has to
wait until the person returns. She opined there are too nmany
guestions and too nmany ifs, ands, or buts, so the nore
regulation put into this sonmetines brings nore enforcenment and

nore questions. She further opined that the Iimt is a
stipulation that wll keep it nore clean cut and allow |aw
enforcement to be nore positive in responding to a call. She

referred to the conmmttee discussion on tax and she said she
found the registration tax simlar to the Raw Fish Tax Program
which the legislature shares with nmunicipalities.

2:20: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN referred to the discussion relating to 12
plants and he surmsed there is sonme tension with what to do
with the constitutional protections from Ravin for plants in a
residence. In attenpting to articulate |Iaw enforcenent needs is
what the 12 plants is attenpting to address and, he noted, the
detective from a prior neeting showed sanples of nmarijuana
except his expertise was in harder drugs. Al t hough, there is
concern wth the 12 plants |imt, he pondered whether
muni cipalities are not going to be doing much with plants at
home, whether 12 or 30 plants because it is confusing and
difficult to ascertain where Ravin fits. He surmsed |aw
enforcenment would find the plants because they are at a
resi dence for sonething el se.

2:22:24 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX asked how Bruce Schulte "squares" the 12 plant
limt with the specific wording of the initiative and whether
hi s organi zation has a position.

BRUCE SCHULTE, Coalition for Responsible Cannabis Legislation,
Anchor age, Al aska, said he has given this issue a great deal of
t hought and determ ned that many of the nunbers thrown out are
somewhat subjective in nature as they are based on precedence
outside of the state.

He said that everyone would like to see |aw enforcenment and
Al askan citizens have clear guidance on this issue. He pondered
substantial argunents for the nunber of plants as the initiative
reads that adults over the age of 21 can have up to six plants,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- March 11, 2015



and the question relates to limts of nultiple adults in the
hore. He said he | ooked at the |egal precedent which was Ravin
and he cannot find a specific reference to 24 plants as it may

be in a subsequent ruling. He determned that the Ravin
decision was a forced issue as M. Ravin went out of his way to
get arrested just to bring this issue to court. When | ooki ng
for a benchmark, 24 plants is a conpelling nunber. He submtted

that a total of 24 plants in any household is probably the nost
defensi ble based upon prior |egal precedent and rationa
argunments. He stated that it points to another opportunity of a

home grower license, referenced in another bill, in which there
shoul d be a distinction bet ween per sonal cul tivation,
possession, and conmercial, however, it is a fact that sone of
the existing commercial market is being supplied by snaller honme
growers. He remarked that the challenge for the industry and
| egislature is how to encourage those folks to participate in a
regul ated marijuana taxed industry. He contends the state
should make it as easy as possible for a person to obtain a hone
grower license so they can participate legitimately in a

regul ated marijuana industry but, he posited, confusion cannot
be entirely avoi ded.

2:26:28 PM

CHAIR LEDQUX said the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (ABC
Board) or Marijuana Control Board can consider a hone grown
license. She opined that there is the Ravin right to privacy
issue which is a different issue than the ternms of the
initiative.

MR. SCHLTE responded that the initiative clearly reads that an
i ndi vidual can grow up to six plants in their honme and where
there are two or nore adults is a grey area, which he surm sed
exists all the way to 24 plants. He suggested that the only
rational manner to address this is to sinply say for a single
adult, possession is six plants, for nultiple adults sharing a
residence the nunber is 24 plants. He said he does not have a
good answer for that issue.

2:28:14 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted that initiative refers to 6 plants
and asked how 12 plants is irrational and 24 plants is rational

He questioned that the nunber of plants is an arbitrary nunber
as there are households wth nore than 4 adults.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- March 11, 2015



MR. SCHULTE said it is only slightly less arbitrary based on the
fact there is a legal opinion stipulating that anything under 25
plants is considered a protected activity under the person's
right to privacy. He said that is the only argunment he can make
and granted that the difference between 12 and 24, based on his
argunent is a slimone.

2:30: 10 PM

MR. HI LYARD offered the rationale as to how the House Comrunity
and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee cane to 12 plants. He
said it goes beyond the Cty and [County] of Denver adopting a
simlar regul ation.

CHAIR LEDOUX said she read the article in the packets which
tal ked about a 36 plant Iimt for the Gty [and County] of
Denver.

MR. HI LYARD stated that is new in response to grow operations in
non-resi dential areas. He noted that the Cty and County of
Denver is attenpting to put a different restriction for grow
operations that could be considered personal grow in non-

residential areas. He opined there is an ordinance before the
Cty and County of Denver that would be a limt of 12 per
household in a residential area. In terns of working wth
muni ci palities in arriving at a bright |ine nunber, he renmarked,

that the federal government currently provides a limtation on
the amount of honme brew a person can brew for persona
consunption for alcohol. He advised the limtations are 100
gal l ons per person or not nore than 200 gallons per household
Simlarly, the thought of the commttee was that if there is a
standard for the anmount of home brew, there should be a Iimt on
the anobunt that can be personally cultivated for persona

consunpti on. He provided that there is a question in the
packets regarding "How nuch usable marijuana is in an ounce of
pot," and the author responded there are roughly 60 joints
assuming that a joint is one-half gram of marijuana. He said
that the author characterized it as a "keg of pot," as there are
roughly 60, 12-ounce beers in a pony keg of beer. The House

Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee determ ned
that an ounce of pot is roughly 5.35 gallons of beer. Depending
upon the ability of a home cultivator the anmount of wusable

marijuana could [fluxuate], he renarked. On the low end, he
opi ned, six plants in one year could produce 1.5 pounds or 18-
ounces. On the high end, he continued, six plants could

generate as nuch as 13.5 pounds of usable marijuana a year. The
comm ttee assunmed that 1.5-13.5 pounds per year for 6 plants is

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- March 11, 2015



a reasonable estimation of the anpunt that could be vyielded.
Using the assunption that 1 ounce is equal to 5.35 gallons of
beer, on the low end 18 ounces equates to approximately 101
gal | ons. Yet, he noted, on the high end 13.5 pounds would
equate to 1200 gallons per year. The canpaign to pronote the
initiative was a canpaign to regulate marijuana |ike alcohol so
in adopting the 12 plant limt, and attenpting to find a bright
line and a standard, that was the rationale.

2:35:10 PM

MR. SCHULTE referred to his 3/11/15, nmeno to Representative
Gabrielle LeDoux and testified regarding  Sec. 12, AS
17.38.110(m, page 7, lines 16-20, which read:

(m A nmunicipality that has not prohibited the

operation of mari j uana cul tivation facilities,
marijuana product manufacturing facilities, marijuana
testing facilities, retail marijuana stores, or

marijuana clubs under (a) of this section may create a
| ocal advisory board to advise the municipality on
i ssues rel at ed to i censing of marij uana
establishments and regul ati on of marijuana.

MR. SCHULTE said he just realized that AS 17.38.110(m is
currently in 29-LS0345\S, and noved to page 3 of his neno
regarding the definition of "public place." There wll be an
i ssue, whet her  comerci al busi ness or otherw se, wher ei n
marijuana mght be lawfully be consuned on the prem ses, mainly
of a private business. He noted that the discussion today had
been about marijuana clubs and he offered other exanples of a
trade show, or the Cannabis Cup. He remarked that those types
of events <could allow consunption on the premses in a
designated area, equivalent to a beer garden. He pointed out
that wthin Title 4 of the alcohol regulations there are 22
different license types articulated, of which are tenporary,
seasonal, and annual |icenses. He submitted that the solution
for this issue is not to define what a public space is, but
rat her provide a sinple exception, which read:

AS 17.38.040 Public Consunption [ BANNED, PENALTY]
It is unlawful to consune marijuana in public, except

on the prem ses of a marijuana establishnent operating
under a state or local license or permt. [A PERSON

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- March 11, 2015



VHO VIOLATES THIS SECTION IS QUJILTY OF A VIOLATI ON
PUNI SHABLE BY A FINE OF UP TO $100].

MR. SCHULTE said the | anguage solves the problemas in the event
the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (ABC Board) determ nes
another permt type, or business type, it had already been
addressed in state statute. It is a permt wth a
classification of tenporary, seasonal or annual, he reiterated,
and it wuld be issued wunder whatever paraneters deened
appropriate where marijuana consunption would be lawful. It the
nost conci se solution to the problem he opined.

2:40: 08 PM

MR. HI LYARD responded to Chair LeDoux that at first blush, M.
Schulte's recomendation could seem reasonable. He reiterated
that CSHB 75 is essentially the work product of nunicipalities,
and woul d ask the municipalities to weigh in.

2:41: 08 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX said she woul d not close public testinony.

2:41: 29 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 2:41 P. M

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- March 11, 2015



